
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the August 20, 2019 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19074-19094. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
7. Jim Ziebell of 6014 Drake Drive would like to address the City Council to discuss a drainage 

issue relating to his property.  
 

8. Resident Director Gary Kroells, West Hennepin Public Safety: 
 

a. Activity Report for the Month of July 2019. 
 

9. George and Linda Betts (Applicants/Owners) request that the City consider the following 
actions for the properties identified by (PID No.s 14-118-24-34-0003 and 14-118-24-34-
0007) and located at 6050 Pagenkopf Road and 2465 Becker Road in Independence, MN: 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-01 – granting approval of a minor subdivision to allow 
a lot line rearrangement to adjust the east west property line separating the properties 
to the north.  

 



 

b. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-02 – granting approval of a conditional use permit to 
allow the existing detached structure to be used as an accessory dwelling unit on the 
6050 Pagenkopf Road property.  

 
10. Laura Dwyer (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 

properties located at 5215 and 5175 Sunset La. (PID No. 01-118-24-31-0002 and 01-118-24-
42-0028) in Independence, MN: 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-03 – granting approval of a minor subdivision to 
consider a lot line rearrangement for the properties located 5215 and 5175 Sunset 
Ln.  The lot line rearrangement would allow for a portion of the property currently 
attached to 5175 Sunset Ln. to be combined with 5215 Sunset Ln. 

 
11. Sharratt Design & Company (Applicant) and Curt Marks (Owner) request that the City 

consider the following action for the property identified by (PID No. 28-118-24-14-0006) 
and located at 7220 Turner in Independence, MN: 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-04 - granting approval of a conditional use permit and 

variance to allow an accessory dwelling, an accessory structure larger than 5,000 SF 
and taller than the principal structure.   

 
12. Gregory Hamman (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for 

the property identified by (PID No. 16-118-24-33-0002) and located at 2460 CSAH 92 N in 
Independence, MN: 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-05 - granting approval of a variance to allow an 
accessory structure to exceed the height of the principle structure. 
 

13. Open/Misc. 
 
14. Adjourn. 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. August 20, 2019 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, AUGUST 20, 2019 –6:30 P.M. 
 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 
 
3.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, McCoy and Grotting 
ABSENT: City Attorney Vose, Councilor Betts 
STAFF: City Administrative Assistant Horner, City Administrator Kaltsas 
VISITORS: Scott Ficek, Anita Volkenant, Laura Dwyer, Corey Oeffling, Tyler Stephenson, Curtis Marks, 

Michael Sharray, Nate Sleck 
 

4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the July 30, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the August 7, 2019 City Council Workshop. 
c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19039-19073. 
d. Approval of a Large Assembly Permit for Mama’s Happy (7888 County Road 6) Fall Art Fair: 

September 12-14, 2019. 
e. Approval of a Medium Assembly Permit for Brian Gilbertson (7165 Turner Road) to Host a Hog 

Roast: September 21, 2019. 
f. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0820-01 – Adopting the Proposed Assessment for the Lyndale Sanitary 

Sewer Improvements.   
 
Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Grotting and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: Betts.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 
 
Kaltsas removed item 7 as Chief Kroells was unable to attend. His report will be made at the 09/03/19 
meeting. 
 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 City of Medina, LICA and Three Rivers Parks Districts members about the no-wake ordinance on 

Lake Independence.  
 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. August 20, 2019 
 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 LMCC Quarterly meeting 
 Three Night-to-Unite Events 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings:  

 City Council Workshop 
 Three Night-to-Unite Events 

 
Betts attended the following meetings: 
 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 

 Haven Homes Meeting 
 Police Commission Meeting 
 Senior Community Services Finance Committee Meeting 
 Five Night-to-Unite Events 
 City Council Workshop 
 Eagle Scout Sam Lieberman’s Ceremony 
 North West Trails Snowmobile Event 
 Maple Plain Library Historical Ice Cream Social 
 Congressmen Phillip and Angie Craig meeting to discuss funding for Highway 12 
 Orono Healthy Youth Meeting Caring for Kids 
 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 
 Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting 
 Highway 55 Coalition Meeting 
 West Hennepin Historical Society of Long Lake meeting 
 Orono School Board Meeting 
 City Council Workshop 

 
Horner attended the following meetings: 

 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 
 City Council Workshop 

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

 Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting 
 City Council Workshop  

 
7. Director Gary Kroells, West Hennepin Public Safety: 

a. Activity Report for the Month of July 2019. (rescheduled for 09/03/19 meeting) 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration to authorize the issuance of revenue bonds for the benefit of 

PHS Founders Ridge, Inc.; approving the execution of the revenue obligations and related 
documents; and taking other actions with respect thereto.  

 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. August 20, 2019 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 19-0820-02 – Authorizing the issuance of revenue obligations for the benefit of 
 PHS Founders Ridge, Inc.; execution of the revenue obligations and related documents; and taking 
 other actions with respect thereto. 
 
Kaltsas said the City has received a proposal to upgrade the existing sanitary sewer system that serves Ox 
Yoke and the two adjacent residential properties (Lyndale Sanitary Sewer System). The City has had a series 
of meetings with Ox Yoke and the City’s current operator of the existing mound system that serves the 
restaurant to discuss issues that are causing the system to not work properly. The concentration of the 
discharge (CBOD and TSS) from the system is too high to be handled by the existing system. The City has 
been working with a company named Septic Check to design an upgrade to the existing system that can 
handle the discharge. Septic Check from Milaca has prepared an estimate for the upgrade to the system 
for $50,500 with an additional $2,500-$5,000 cost to upgrade the existing lift station control panels. The 
upgrade to the control panels will provide Septic Check with the ability to remotely monitor the system. 
The City believes that the proposed system provides the most cost effective and sustainable solution to 
address the sanitary sewer needs for this area moving forward. 
 
Kaltsas said Staff has discussed the proposed update with Ox Yoke based on direction previously provided by 
the City Council relating to funding for the project. Currently, the owner is asking the City to assess a portion 
of the update costs to the Ox Yoke property. The City had initially discussed assessing 50% of the project cost 
to the property. The owner is asking for additional consideration to assess 70% of the project cost or $35,000 
to the property. The remaining balance (~$15,000) will be paid up front by the property owner. In 
exchange for the additional assessment amount, the City would reduce the assessment period to 5 years.  
 
Council provided direction to staff to move forward with an assessment of $35,000 over five years. 
The City has prepared a detailed breakdown of the proposed assessment role for the property. The owner 
of Ox Yoke has agreed to waive any objection to the special assessment. This waiver agreement allows 
the City to proceed with adopting the assessment without any further hearings or discussion. If approved, the 
sanitary sewer system upgrades will likely commence in September 2019. The City will contract with Septic 
Check to design, install and regularly monitor the entire system. Independence staff will no longer maintain 
and or monitor the system. The cost of monitoring the system will continue to be charged to the users of the 
system via regular quarterly sewer charges. 
 
Public Hearing Open 
No comments. 
 
Motion by Spencer to close the Public Hearing, second by Grotting. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting 
and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: Betts.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
Public Hearing Closed 
 
Kaltsas said this was a good opportunity for the City to obtain some funds through this conduit financing. He 
noted the City would receive about $45,000 as payment for issuing the note. That amount is ½ of 1% of 9M.  
This is a tax-exempt obligation and there is no liability to the City. Kaltsas said the City has done a couple of 
these notes in the past and it is relatively low administrative costs to the City. 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION NO. 19-0820-02 – Authorizing the 
issuance of revenue obligations for the benefit of PHS Founders Ridge, Inc.; execution of the revenue 
obligations and related documents; and taking other actions with respect thereto. Ayes: Johnson, 
McCoy, Grotting and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: Betts.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 



 

4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. August 20, 2019 
 

 
9. Consider Approval of an Amendment to the Tri-City Agreement Creating the Quad City Agreement to 

Allow Loretto to Connect to the City’s Existing Sanitary Sewer Line. 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 19-0820-03 – Approving the Quad City Agreement. 
 
Kaltsas said the City has been working on an amendment to the Tri-City Agreement (will now be called the 
Quad-City Agreement) in order to allow Loretto to connect to the City of Independence Force Main on 
County Road 19. The agreement has been revised and is now in a form to be considered for adoption by the 
City. There are several key points that should be noted: 
 
The City has been working to understand the potential number of additional Independence units that could be 
connected to the system. The City has focused on lakeshore lots that have access to the sewer. Earlier this year 
the City determined that lakeshore lots that have the ability to connect to City sewer can be a minimum of 1 
acre. Based on the conceptual subdivision of properties, (primarily along Independence Road) it was 
estimated that an additional 14-34 lots could be realized. The City also recognized that there are six properties 
on Windmill Dr. that are not connected City sewer. Staff has been working with Medina to increase the 
number of connections included in the Quad City Agreement. Medina has stated that they would allow an 
additional 26 connections on top of the 289 agreed to in the Tri-City Agreement for a total of 315 
connections. The City has been working to determine how the Metropolitan Council will handle I&I after the 
Loretto connection. Independence and Loretto will metered by the Metropolitan Council before discharging 
into the force main sanitary sewer line that runs south along County Road 19 to the Medina lift station. 
Greenfield will not be metered by the Metropolitan Council. Independence will continue to receive meter 
readings from Greenfield and will be responsible for administering a proportionate share of any I&I 
surcharges. Similarly, Independence connects to Medinas gravity sanitary sewer line at Perkinsville Road. 
This connection point will not be metered by the Metropolitan Council and Independence will be subject to 
providing Medina with sewer flow readings and a proportionate share of any I&I surcharges. Many of the 
costs associated with maintenance and repairs to the shared system will now be reimbursed by the 
Metropolitan Council and can be seen in the cooperative agreements between the Metropolitan Council and 
the cities of Medina and Independence. There is a cap on the total amount that will be reimbursed and any 
costs exceeding the cap amount will be proportionately shared amongst the quad cities. The agreement has 
been modified to remove the reconstruction of the pipe under Sycamore Trail. The Metropolitan Council is 
including this replacement in their project. The Cities will continue to have a maximum daily flow that can be 
pumped into the system. Those daily flow numbers will reflect the increased number of units. 
 
Johnson asked if Met Council is working with Greenfield and Kaltsas replied they are not. He said we would 
be the recipients not Greenfield and then the flow goes to Medina. McCoy asked if the meter would be 
upgrade. Kaltsas said Met Council is not going to upgrade the meter and Staff is fine with the readings we are 
getting through the meter at this point. We will be able to back charge I&I if that becomes an issue. Johnson 
noted this was a great value because it would be an improvement for Sycamore Lane. Kaltsas said the sewer 
fund would benefit from this too. Kaltsas said if Greenfield does not approve that it will be back to a tri-
review again. 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to RESOLUTION NO. 19-0820-03 – Approving the Quad City 
Agreement if the City received reimbursement for expenses. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting and 
Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: Betts.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
10. Open/Misc. 
 



 

5 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. August 20, 2019 
 

11. Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy and carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:22 p.m. 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Trish Gronstal/Recording Secretary 



























6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Minor Subdivision to Permit a Lot Line Rearrangment  
and a Conditional Use Permit to Allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit on the  

Properties Located at 6050 Pagenkopf Road and 2465 Becker Road 
 

To: City Council 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 

Applicant: George and Linda Betts 

Owner: George and Linda Betts 

Location: 6050 Pagenkopf Road and 2465 Becker Road 

 
Request: 
George and Linda Betts (Applicants) request that the City consider the following action for the properties 
identified by (PID No.s 14-118-24-34-0003 and 14-118-24-34-0007) and located at 6050 Pagenkopf Road 
and 2465 Becker Road in Independence, MN: 

 
a. A minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement to adjust the east west property line 

separating the properties to the north.  
 

b. A conditional use permit to allow the existing detached structure to be used as an 
accessory dwelling unit on the 6050 Pagenkopf Road property.  

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
There are two subject properties involved in the applicant’s request.  Both properties are located at the 
intersection of Pagenkopf and Becker Roads.  There is a residential structure located on each property.  
6050 Pagenkopf Road has two additional detached accessory structures.  The property has a mixture of 
mature trees and open pasture/lawn.  
 
Property Information: 6050 Pagenkopf Road   Property Information: 2465 Becker Road  

 
Zoning: RR-Rural Residential    Zoning: RR-Rural Residential 
Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential   Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
Acreage (before): 2.50 acres    Acreage (before): 3.60 acres 
Acreage (after): 2.98 acres    Acreage (after): 3.13 acres 

 
   



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 2 

 

6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road 

 
 
 
Discussion: 
The City allows accessory dwelling units as a conditional use in both Rural Residential and Agriculture 
zoning districts.  The intent of the ordinance was to allow for “mother-in-law” type units to be located within 
the principle structure or within a detached accessory building.  The applicants have two properties with a 
residential structure located on each property.  The applicants have historically used the residential 
structure located on the 2465 Becker Road property as a “mother-in-law” unit.  It is apparent that the 
structure was constructed as a secondary dwelling due to the location of the structure, the lack of an 
independent access, the subordinate size of the second structure and the proximity of the structure to the 
principle residence on 6050 Pagenkopf Road.  The applicants would like to adjust the east/west property 
line separating the two properties to the north to capture the secondary residential structure as an 
accessory dwelling unit on the 6050 Pagenkopf Road property.  This lot line rearrangement would allow the 
2465 Becker Road property to be developed with a new principle residential structure.   
 
The existing accessory dwelling unit is comprised of two bedrooms, a bathroom, a kitchen, dining and 
family room area.  In order to allow an accessory dwelling unit, the applicant will need to demonstrate that 
they meet all applicable criteria for granting a conditional use permit.  The City has criteria broadly relating 
to Conditional Use Permits and then more focused criteria relating specifically to accessory dwelling units.  
  
An accessory dwelling unit must meet the following criteria:   
 
Subd. 2.  "Accessory Dwelling Unit."  A secondary dwelling unit that is: 

(a) Physically attached to or within a single-family dwelling unit or within a detached a accessory 
building that has a principal structure on the parcel; and 
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize the existing detached accessory dwelling unit. 



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 3 

 

 
(b) Subordinate in size to the single-family dwelling unit; and 

 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be subordinate in size to the single-family 
dwelling unit. 
 

(c) Fully separated from the single-family dwelling unit by means of a wall or floor, with or without 
a door; and 
 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be separated from the single-family 
home. 
 

(d) Architecturally compatible with the principal structure (using materials, finishes, style and 
colors similar to the principal structure); and 
 
The proposed accessory structure is existing and somewhat architecturally similar to 
the principal structure.  The structure has siding and architectural features that 
complement the principle home on the property. 
 

(e) The lesser of 33% of the above ground living area of the principal structure or 1,200 square 
feet, and no less than 400 square feet; and  
 
The principal structure has 3,306 square feet of above ground space not including the 
basement.  33% of 3,306 square feet equals 1,091 square feet.  The applicant is 
proposing to include the existing detached accessory structure which is a total of 
1,100 square feet.  The proposed square footage would be close (would round up 9 SF) 
to equal to the permitted maximum number of square feet. 
  

(f) Not in excess of the maximum square footage for accessory structures as permitted in this 
code; and  
 
The maximum accessory structure size for properties zoned RR-Rural Residential is 
2% of the buildable (upland) lot area.  In the after condition, the subject property would 
be 2.98 acres.  This would allow a total of 2,596 SF of accessory structures to be 
constructed on the property.  There are two existing detached accessory structures 
comprised of 830 SF and 200 SF which total 1,030 SF.  With the additional 1,100 SF of 
the existing accessory dwelling unit added to the total square footage (2,130), the 
subject property would comply with applicable standards. 
 

(g) Has permanent provisions for cooking, living and sanitation; and 
 
The existing accessory dwelling unit has permanent provisions for cooking; living and 
sanitation. 
 

(h) Has no more than 2 bedrooms; and 



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 4 

 

 
The existing accessory dwelling unit has two bedrooms. 
 

(i) Limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the homesteaded owners of the 
principal structure.  The total number of individuals that reside in both the principal dwelling 
unit and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the number that is allowed by the building 
code; and 
 
The applicant is proposing that the accessory dwelling unit be occupied solely by 
family members.   
 

(j) Uses the existing on-site septic systemb or an approved holding tank; and 
 
The existing detached accessory dwelling unit on the 2465 Becker Road property has 
an existing on-site septic system that is in working condition.  The applicant is asking 
the City to consider allowing the existing detached accessory unit to continue to utilize 
the existing system rather than connecting to the septic system serving the principle 
residence. The City can condition approval of the CUP on this condition.  If considered 
by the City, it is recommended that the condition stipulate that the accessory dwelling 
unit be connected to the principle system upon sale or transfer of the property.   
 

(k) Respectful of the future subdivision of the property and the primary and secondary septic 
sites.  The City may require a sketch of the proposed future subdivision of a property; and  
 
The subject property cannot be further subdivided and the location of the existing 
accessory dwelling unit to the north of the existing home would not impede the ability 
to subdivide the property or locate a secondary septic site if standards were changed 
in the future.  
 

(l) In compliance with the adopted building code relating to all aspects of the dwelling unit. 
 
The existing detached accessory dwelling unit meets all applicable building codes.   

 
a  On lots less than 2.5 acres, the accessory dwelling unit must be attached to the principal dwelling 
unit or located/constructed within an existing detached accessory structure that meets all criteria of 
this section. 
 
b The existing on-site septic system will be required to be inspected by the City to ensure 
compliance with all applicable standards.  Any system that does not meet all applicable standards 
shall be brought into compliance as a part of the approval of the accessory dwelling unit.   

 
The existing detached accessory dwelling unit has historically been used as an “mother-in-law” unit of the 
principle residence located on 6050 Pagenkopf Road.  The historic use of the property and the relationship 
of the existing accessory dwelling unit to the principle structure would not change if the property line was 
adjusted to the north.  The remaining property located at 2465 Becker Road would be required to meet all 



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 5 

 

applicable standards.  A primary and secondary septic system will be required to be verified on the 2465 
Becker Road property in the after condition. 
 
 2465 Pagenkopf Road 

Minimum Lot Size Required: 2.5 acres 
Minimum Lot Size Proposed: 3.13 acres 
 
Road Frontage Required: 200 LF 
Road Frontage Proposed: 341 LF 
 

The 6050 Pagenkopf Road property will need to comply with applicable standards in the after condition.  
The applicant is proposing to adjust the north property line so that the existing accessory dwelling unit 
meets the applicable side yard setback of 15 feet (proposed 32.5 feet).  The existing residential structure 
and the detached accessory dwelling unit do not currently meet the requisite rear yard setback standard of 
40 feet.  As such, they are considered legal non-conforming structures (front yard for both properties is 
considered Becker Road).   

   
 



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 6 

 

 
As proposed, the existing detached accessory dwelling unit appears to meet all applicable criteria 
established in the zoning ordinance with the exception of using the septic system for the principle structure 
and meeting the rear yard setback (existing condition).  The 6050 Pagenkopf Road property has the 
capacity to accommodate the additional detached accessory structure square footage.  In addition to the 
requirements for allowing an accessory dwelling unit, the City has additional criteria which need to be 
considered for granting a conditional use permit  
 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 
traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 
protect the city form pollution hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 
environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 
 
Consideration for the proposed conditional use permit should weigh the impact of moving the lot line to 
allow the existing accessory dwelling unit to be located on the 6050 Pagenkopf Road property.  The historic 
use of both properties will essentially remain the same in the after condition.  The applicant has used the 
detached accessory dwelling unit as a “mother-in-law” apartment since it was originally constructed.  The 
Becker Road property will become an available buildable lot.  The location of the existing accessory 
dwelling unit and its compliance with most applicable standards would allow the City to consider approval of 
the conditional use permit.  The proposed minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement can only be 
considered at this time if the City recommends approval of the conditional use permit for the detached 
accessory dwelling unit.  The City will need to find that the accessory dwelling unit meets the requirements 
and criteria for granting a conditional use permit.   
 
The following conditions should be considered for inclusion if approved by the City:  
 



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 7 

 

 The 6050 Pagenkopf Road property has a fully compliant septic system.  The applicant will 
need to provide verification that the 2465 Becker Road property can accommodate a 
primary and secondary septic system. 
 

 Upon the sale or transfer in title or ownership of the 6050 Pagenkopf Road property, the 
existing detached accessory dwelling unit shall be connected to the principle residence 
septic system.   

 
 The applicant is proposing to dedicate the requisite drainage and utility easements to the 

City for both properties.  The City will require that the applicant deed the easements to the 
City.   

 
 The proposed accessory structure cannot be expanded or enlarged without the review and 

approval of the City.  Any expansion will require an amendment to the conditional use 
permit and possibly a variance following all applicable procedures. 
 
 

Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written comments regarding the proposed conditional use permit to allow an 
accessory dwelling unit or the minor subdivision. 
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the requested application and asked questions of staff and the 
applicant.  Commissioners discussed the historic use of the structure in relation to the existing home.  
Commissioners asked for clarification relating to the septic system provision that would allow the existing 
accessory dwelling unit to stay connected to the existing septic system until there is a sale or transfer of the 
southern property.  Commissioners discussed the remaining property and where the property access would 
be for the north property on Becker Road.  The Planning Commission ultimately found that the criteria for 
granting a conditional use permit and minor subdivision have been satisfied by the applicant and 
recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested conditional use permit and minor subdivision 
with the following findings and conditions: 

A. The proposed conditional use permit and minor subdivision request meets all applicable 
conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions and Chapter V, 
Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
B. The conditional use permit will be issued subject to the following Conditions:    

 
1. The existing accessory structure cannot be expanded or enlarged without the review and 

approval of the City.  Any expansion will require an amendment to the conditional use 



6050 Pagenkopf Road/2465 Becker Road Minor Subdivision and CUP Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 8 

 

permit and possibly a variance following all applicable procedures.  
 

2. Upon the sale or transfer in title or ownership of the 6050 Pagenkopf Road property, the 
existing detached accessory dwelling unit shall be connected to the principle residence 
septic system.   

 
C. Prior to the City Council placing the Conditional Use Permit into effect, the applicant shall 

provide the City with the following items: 
 
 The Applicant will need to provide verification that the 2465 Becker Road property can 

accommodate a primary and secondary septic system. 
 

 The Applicant shall provide, execute and record the requisite drainage and utility 
easement with the county within six (6) months of approval.  

 
 The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

conditional use permit and minor subdivision. 
 

D. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county within 
six (6) months of approval.  

 
 

Attachments: 

1. Before and After Site Plan Exhibits 
2. Application 

 
 

 











 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-01 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW  
A LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT BETWEEN THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 6050 

PAGENKOPF ROAD AND 2465 BECKER ROAD 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, George and Linda Betts (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for a minor 
subdivision to allow the lot line rearrangement between the properties located at 6050 Pagenkopf 
Road and 2465 Becker Road and identified by (PID No.s 14-118-24-34-0007 and 14-118-24-34-
0003) (the “Properties”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Properties are legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the subdivision is further depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Properties are zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS the requested Minor Subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 16, 2019 to review 
the application for the Minor Subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as required by 
law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

George and Linda Betts for a minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement per the City’s 
zoning regulations with the following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed minor subdivision request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions 

stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions, in the City of Independence Ordinances. 
 

2. City Council approval shall be subject to the following:  
 

 The Applicant will need to provide verification that the 2465 Becker Road property 
can accommodate a primary and secondary septic system. 
 

 The Applicant shall provide, execute and record the requisite drainage and utility 
easements with the county within six (6) months of approval.  

 
 The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the 

requested minor subdivision. 
 

3. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 
within six (6) months of approval.  

 
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
3rd day of September 2019, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 

(Subdivision) 

 

 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-02 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
ALLOW AN ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT ON  

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6050 PAGENKOPF ROAD  
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, George and Linda Betts (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow an accessory dwelling unit on the property located 6050 
Pagenkopf Road and Identified by (PID No. 14-118-24-34-0007) (the “Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS the requested conditional use permit meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 16, 2019 to review 
the application for the conditional use permit, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
George and Linda Betts for a conditional use permit with the following conditions: 

 



 

1. The proposed conditional use permit requests meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence 
Ordinances. 
 

2. The conditional use permit will be issued subject to the following Conditions:    
 

a. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure 
conformance with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 

b. The existing accessory structure cannot be expanded or enlarged without the review 
and approval of the City.  Any expansion will require an amendment to the 
conditional use permit and possibly a variance following all applicable procedures.  
 

c. Upon the sale or transfer in title or ownership of the 6050 Pagenkopf Road property, 
the existing detached accessory dwelling unit shall be connected to the principle 
residence septic system.   

 
d. The accessory structure shall not be permitted as a second principle structure on the 

property. 
 
e. The use of the ADU is limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the 

homesteaded owners of the principal structure.  The total number of individuals that 
reside in both the principal dwelling unit and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed 
the number that is allowed by the building code. 
 

3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
conditional use permit. 
 

4. The Applicant shall record the City Council Resolution with the county within six (6) 
months of approval.  

 
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
3rd day of September 2019, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



5215 and 5175 Sunset Lane Minor Subdivision – City Council  9.3.2019  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Minor Subdivision to Allow a Lot Line Rearrangement  
on the Properties Located at 5215 and 5175 Sunset Lane 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 

Applicant: Laura Dwyer 

Owner: Laura Dwyer and Tyler and Dayna Stephenson 

Location: 5215 and 5175 Sunset Lane 

 
Request: 
Laura Dwyer (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the properties 
located at 5215 and 5175 Sunset La. (PID No. 01-118-24-31-0002 and 01-118-24-42-0028) in 
Independence, MN: 

 
a. A Minor Subdivision to consider a lot line rearrangement for the properties located 5215 and 

5175 Sunset Ln.  The lot line rearrangement would allow for a portion of the property currently 
attached to 5175 Sunset Ln. to be combined with 5215 Sunset Ln. 

 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the south side of Sunset Lane near the intersection of Sunset Lane and Lake 
Sarah Heights Drive.  There is an existing residence located on each of the respective properties.  5175 
Sunset Lane has lakeshore access on Lake Sarah.  The properties have the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 5215 Sunset Lane  
 Zoning: Rural Residential (Shoreland Overlay) 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
 Acreage:  Before – 0.84 acres 
   After – 0.97 acres 
 

Property Information: 5175 Sunset Lane 
 Zoning: Rural Residential (Shoreland Overlay) 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
 Acreage:  Before – 1.67 acres 
   After – 1.54 acres 



5215 and 5175 Sunset Lane Minor Subdivision – City Council  9.3.2019  
 Page 2 

 

5215 and 5175 Sunset Lane 

   
 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking a minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement that would allow the property 
located at 5215 Sunset Lane to capture a “strip” of land directly adjacent and currently belonging to the 
property located at 5175 Sunset Lane.  The 30-foot-wide piece of property appears to have been attached 
to the 5175 Sunset property to provide access to the western portion of the property along the lakeshore.  
There is an existing low area between the house on 5175 Sunset Lane and the lake frontage which can 
restrict access to the shoreline in wet years.  The subject 30 foot wide strip of land has historically been 
maintained by the owners of 5215 Sunset Lane.  The two property owners have worked out an agreement 
that would allow the property to be combined with 5215 Sunset Lane.  In exchange for the sale of the 
property, the owners of 5215 Sunset Lane would grant an access easement back to the owners of 5175 
Sunset Lane.   
 
5215 Sunset Lane is considered a legal non-conforming lot by the City.  The minimum lot size for sewered 
properties located in the Shoreland Overlay district is one acre.  In addition, the property located at 5215 
Sunset Lane received a side yard and front yard setback variance in 2017 to allow the expansion of the 
existing home.  Should the City approve the minor subdivision, the existing home would come into 
conformance with the requisite side yard setback.  The 5175 Sunset Lane property is a legal property.  

 
Staff has reviewed the request and offers the following information for consideration by the Planning 
Commission: 
 

Area to be  
combined  
 

5215  5175 



5215 and 5175 Sunset Lane Minor Subdivision – City Council  9.3.2019  
 Page 3 

 

1. The lot line rearrangement does not appear to impact either property or create any additional 
non-conformities.   

 
2. The side yard setback of the existing home on the 5215 Sunset Lane property would be 

conforming in the after condition.   
 

3. Both properties are connected to City sewer.  
 

4. The minor subdivision would clean up both properties and align with the historical use and 
maintenance of the properties. 

 

 

Neighbor Comments: 

The City has not received any written comments pertaining to the request for a lot line rearrangement and 
no comments were made at the Planning Commission Public Hearing.  

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the requested application and asked questions of staff and the 
applicant.  Planning Commissioner’s clarified that the applicant was maintaining an access easement 
across the property and that it would run in perpetuity with the land.  The Planning Commission ultimately 
found that the criteria for approving a minor subdivision have been satisfied by the applicant and 
recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested minor subdivision to allow a lot line 
rearrangement with the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement request meets all applicable 
conditions and restrictions stated Chapter V, Sections 500 and 510, Planning and Land Use 
Regulations and Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested minor 
subdivision. 
 

3. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county within six (6) 
months of approval. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Surveys (Before and After) 
 

















 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-03 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW  
A LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT BETWEEN THE  

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 5215 AND 5175 SUNSET LANE 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Laura Dwyer (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for a minor subdivision 
to allow the lot line rearrangement between the properties located at 5215 and 5175 Sunset La. 
(the “Properties”) and identified by (PID No.s 01-118-24-31-0002 and 01-118-24-42-0028); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Properties are legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the subdivision is further depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Properties are zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS the requested minor subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 20, 2019 to 
review the application for the minor subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

Laura Dwyer for a minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement per the City’s zoning 
regulations with the following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed minor subdivision request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions 

stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions, in the City of Independence Ordinances. 
 

2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
minor subdivision. 

 
3. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 

within six (6) months of approval.  
 
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
3rd day of September 2019, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 

(Subdivision) 

 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Conditional Use Permit and Variance  
on the Property located 7220 Turner Road 

 

To: City Council 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 

Applicant: Sharratt Design & Company 

Property Owner: Curt Marks 

Location: 7220 Turner Road 

 

Request: 
Sharratt Design & Company (Applicant) and Curt Marks (Owner) request that the City consider the 
following actions for the property identified by (PID No. 28-118-24-14-0006) and located at 7220 Turner in 
Independence, MN: 
 

a. A Conditional Use Permit to allow an accessory dwelling unit. 
b. A Conditional Use Permit to allow an accessory structure larger than 5,000 SF. 
c. A variance to allow an accessory structure that is taller than the principal structure.   

 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the north side of Turner Road between CSAH 90 and CSAH 92.  The property is 
comprised of an existing home, barn and several additional detached accessory structures.  The property 
has pasture areas, paddocks and a small wetland.  The property has the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 7220 Turner Road 
Zoning: Agriculture 

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: 21.46 acres 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 2 

 

7220 Turner Road 

 
 
 
Discussion: 
The property owner currently has an existing home with large barn and indoor riding arena on the subject 
property.  The City granted a conditional use permit in 2018 to allow use of the property for a commercial 
riding stable.  The property owner is now interested in constructing a new detached accessory structure on 
the property that is larger than 5,000 SF, is taller than the principle residence and houses an accessory 
dwelling unit.   
 
The owner would like to construct a new detached accessory structure for personal use as a multipurpose 
recreation building. The proposed building would be a multi-story building comprised of approximately 
6,000 SF on the first floor and 3,000 SF on the second floor.  The building would have a garage, game 
room, accessory dwelling unit, office, kitchen and other similar and associated recreation space. 
 
All accessory structures greater than 5,000 SF require a conditional use permit.  In addition to the limitation 
on building size, the City regulates the maximum height of detached accessory structures.  The maximum 
height of a detached accessory structure shall not exceed the height of the principle structure. 
 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 3 

 

3 The height of an accessory structure shall not exceed the height of the principle 
structure.  The height of the principle and accessory structure shall be measured 
in accordance with the definition provided in this ordinance, Section 510.05, 
Subdivision 10. 

 

 
 

The existing home on the property is one story home with a mean height of 24 feet (total height of 28).  The 
applicant would like the City to permit the detached accessory building to have a mean height of 28 feet 
(total height of 36 feet).  In order for the applicant to construct a building higher than that which is permitted, 
the City will need to consider granting a 4-foot variance.   
 
520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision 1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 
terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 
is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 
the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 
with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in  
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means:  

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code;  
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner;  

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 4 

 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the  
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend and the City Council may 
impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 
proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. The applicant is proposing to use the property in a manner consistent with the Agriculture Zoning 
District.  The City is currently working on revising the ordinance to provide a method for permitting 
detached accessory structures that exceed the height of the home.  
 

b. The effect of the requested variance will be somewhat mitigated as a result of the size of the 
property as well as its relationship to surrounding properties.  

 
c. The character of the surrounding area is agriculture.  The proposed detached accessory building is 

generally in keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 
The applicant would also like to utilize a portion of the detached accessory structure for an accessory 
dwelling unit.  The City allows accessory dwelling units as a conditional use in the Agriculture zoning 
district.  The intent of the ordinance was to allow for “mother-in-law” type units to be located within the 
principle structure or within a detached accessory building.    
 
In order to allow an accessory dwelling unit, the property owner will need to demonstrate that they meet all 
applicable criteria for granting a conditional use permit.  The City has criteria broadly relating to Conditional 
Use Permits and then more focused criteria relating specifically to accessory dwelling units.  
  
An accessory dwelling unit must meet the following criteria:   
 
Subd. 2.  "Accessory Dwelling Unit."  A secondary dwelling unit that is: 

(a) Physically attached to or within a single-family dwelling unit or within a detached a accessory 
building that has a principal structure on the parcel; and 
 
The applicant is proposing to locate an accessory dwelling unit within the proposed 
detached accessory building. 
 

(b) Subordinate in size to the single-family dwelling unit; and 
 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be subordinate in size to the single-family 
dwelling unit as only a portion of the proposed detached accessory building would be 
used as an accessory dwelling unit. 
 

(c) Fully separated from the single-family dwelling unit by means of a wall or floor, with or without 
a door; and 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 5 

 

 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be separated from the single-family 
home. 
 

(d) Architecturally compatible with the principal structure (using materials, finishes, style and 
colors similar to the principal structure); and 
 
The proposed accessory structure would have an architectural character that is 
consistent with the agricultural use of the property.  
 

(e) The lesser of 33% of the above ground living area of the principal structure or 1,200 square 
feet, and no less than 400 square feet; and  
 
The principal structure has approximately 4,500 square feet of above ground space not 
including the basement or garage.  33% of 4,500 square feet equals 1,485 square feet.  
The applicant is proposing to construct approximately 1,150 square feet of accessory 
dwelling unit.  The proposed layout of the bedrooms, bathroom and kitchen is 
somewhat unique due to the multi-purpose use of the detached accessory structure.  
The City will need to consider the proposed layout and determine if it meets the intent 
of the accessory dwelling unit ordinance.  Historically, the City looked to establish a 
clear separation or distinction between the ADU and the remaining finished or 
unfinished space in the detached accessory structure. 
  

(f) Not in excess of the maximum square footage for accessory structures as permitted in this 
code; and  
 
There is no maximum accessory structure size for properties zoned AG-Agriculture 
and larger than 10 acres in overall size 
 

(g) Has permanent provisions for cooking, living and sanitation; and 
 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit has permanent provisions for cooking; living 
and sanitation. 
 

(h) Has no more than 2 bedrooms; and 
 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit has one bedroom. 
 

(i) Limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the homesteaded owners of the 
principal structure.  The total number of individuals that reside in both the principal dwelling 
unit and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the number that is allowed by the building 
code; and 
 
The applicant is proposing that the accessory dwelling unit be occupied solely by 
family members.   



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 6 

 

 
(j) Uses the existing on-site septic systemb or an approved holding tank; and 

 
The applicant will likely need to increase the size of the existing on site-septic system 
to accommodate the additional bedroom.  The City will need to evaluate the proposed 
structure in more detail should the City grant approval of the ADU.  
 

(k) Respectful of the future subdivision of the property and the primary and secondary septic 
sites.  The City may require a sketch of the proposed future subdivision of a property; and  
 
The subject property cannot be further subdivided at this time due to the zoning and 
permitted land use.   
 

(l) In compliance with the adopted building code relating to all aspects of the dwelling unit. 
 
The proposed detached accessory dwelling unit will need to meet all applicable 
building codes.   

 
a  On lots less than 2.5 acres, the accessory dwelling unit must be attached to the principal dwelling 
unit or located/constructed within an existing detached accessory structure that meets all criteria of 
this section. 
 
b The existing on-site septic system will be required to be inspected by the City to ensure 
compliance with all applicable standards.  Any system that does not meet all applicable standards 
shall be brought into compliance as a part of the approval of the accessory dwelling unit.   

 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 
traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 
protect the city form pollution hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 
environmental features. 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 7 

 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 
 
The City should consider the following issues/points during their review of the requested actions: 
 

 The City is considering amending the ordinance to provide a mechanism for allowing accessory 
structures that are taller than the principle structure.  The property owner is proposing to develop a 
structure that appears to be designed to have an agricultural theme utilizing materials and colors 
that will be compatible with character of the area. 
 

 The property owner has noted that they intend to construct a new principle structure on the 
property in the near future.  The new principle structure will be larger than the existing home on the 
property and establish a better sense of proportionality between the structures on the property. 

 
 The location of the proposed structure and its relationship to surrounding properties will help to 

mitigate the potential impact of the taller and larger detached accessory structure.  In addition, 
there is a larger stand of existing trees that would further screen the proposed structure from 
surrounding properties. 

 
 The proposed accessory dwelling unit does not appear to be in keeping with the historic 

interpretation of the ADU ordinance.  The City will need to consider how the proposed bedroom, 
bathroom and kitchen relate to the remaining space within the detached accessory structure as 
these spaces that comprise the ADU are not fully delineated from the remaining recreation space. 
There could be a concern relating to the structure being misunderstood as a second residential 
home as a result of the size, interior space and more traditional garage space.  Typically, the City 
has reviewed ADU’s that are fully delineated within a detached accessory structure and therefore 
clearly subordinate to the use of the detached accessory structure.  The Planning Commission 
discussed this issue and provided additional direction in their recommendation to City Council.  For 
context and discussion, the City would allow a finished detached accessory structure with similar 
features to that which is proposed without the full kitchen and bedrooms.  Bathrooms, recreation 
space, bar, etc. would all be permitted without a conditional use.  The City has typically 
distinguished an accessory dwelling unit from an accessory structure by whether or not there are 
bedrooms and or a kitchen stove/oven.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 8 

 

Existing Property and Buildings 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 9 

 

 

Existing House  

Existing Barn 

and Riding 

Arena  

Proposed 

Accessory 

Building  



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 10 

 

 
The City has visited the site and discussed the proposed detached accessory structure with the architect.  
Given the location of the property off of Turner Road and the orientation of the buildings and their 
relationship to the surrounding properties, it appears that the proposed application can be found to meet 
the requirements for granting a conditional use permit and variance as requested.  
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City received a written comment from a resident of Independence.  The concern expressed relates to 
the intent of the ADU ordinance and whether or not this building would be misconstrued for a second 
principle dwelling on the property.  In addition, it was noted there was recently a wedding held on the 
property that included fireworks.  No other comments were made in writing or at the public hearing for this 
application.   
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the requests and asked questions of staff.  Commissioners discussed 
the proposed accessory building, its relationship to the other buildings on the property and to other 
properties.  Commissioners discussed the variance for the height of the building and noted that the existing 
stable and indoor riding arena exceeded the height limitations and that the proposed building was 
considerably smaller than the riding arena.  Commissioners discussed the proposed ADU within the new 
accessory building.  Commissioners talked bout how to distinguish the proposed ADU from the remaining 
recreational space.  Commissioners noted that the recreational space, minus the bedroom and full kitchen 
would be permitted by the City.  Commissioners recommended that the City approve a site plan that details 
the extent of the ADU within the accessory building. The City would have the ability to inspect the property 
and ensure that no expansion of the designated ADU spaces (i.e. bedrooms, kitchen) would be permitted 
and the total square footage of those spaces could not exceed 1,200 square feet.  The Planning 
Commission ultimately found that the requested conditional use permit and variances met all applicable 
criteria and recommended approval to the City Council with two additional conditions; the applicant shall 
prepare an exhibit that identifies that extents of the ADU within the accessory structure (the exhibit will be 
attached to the resolution), a condition that specifically prohibits the use of the proposed accessory 
structure for commercial use and or events should be added to the resolution. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for a conditional use permit and variance with 
the following findings and conditions: 
 

a) The proposed conditional use permit and variance request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 



CUP and Variance Request for 7220 Turner Road – City Council 09.03.2019  
 Page 11 

 

 
b) The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  

 
1. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance with the 

conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 
2. The existing accessory structure shall be constructed in accordance with the approved site and 

building plans as shown on EXHIBIT B.  The structure cannot be expanded or enlarged without 
the review and approval of the City.  Any expansion will require an amendment to the conditional 
use permit and possibly a variance following all applicable procedures. 

 
3. The accessory structure shall not be permitted as a second principle structure on the property. 

 
4. The use of the accessory structure for any commercial use and or events is prohibited. 

 
5. The accessory dwelling unit (ADU) will have the following restrictions: 

 
i. The ADU is limited to 1,200 square feet, a maximum of 2 bedrooms and shall not be 

expanded beyond the extents of the area defined on EXHIBIT C.   
 

ii. The use of the ADU is limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the 
homesteaded owners of the principal structure.  The total number of individuals that reside 
in both the principal dwelling unit and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the number 
that is allowed by the building code. 

 
c) The 4-foot variance will allow the detached accessory building to have a maximum height of 28 feet 

as measured in accordance with City standards. 
 

d) The Owner will be required to meet all applicable standards relating to the on-site septic system for 
the proposed detached accessory structure. 
 

e) The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review of the conditional use permit and 
variance applications and recording of the resolution.  
 

 
 

Attachments: 
1. Applicants Narrative 
2. Site Plan/Survey (Exhibit B) 
3. ADU Limits Exhibit C 
4. Proposed Building Plans 
 

 
 























I have a couple comments on the variance request for 7220 Turner Road: 
 

1.   This proposed building sounds like another house where "family" would stay; either 
that or it is a recreational facility that I would think borders on commercial/business 
use.  Both of those would not be allowed under the Code.  I do not think this use is what 
was intended by the Accessory dwelling language. 

 

2.   I have some concerns about the uses these folks think are allowed/appropriate in the 
agricultural area of our city.  There was a wedding there not long ago that included 
about 10‐12 minutes of commercial grade fireworks; they lit up the neighborhood and 
were very noisy.  As far as I know they were not permitted by the large assembly permit 
and there was no notice that this would occur at 10 p.m. in the neighborhood. 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                      Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 
 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-04 
 
	

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND 

VARIANCE AS REQUESTED BY CURT MARKS FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 7220 TURNER ROAD 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS Curt Marks (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the 
application for a conditional use permit to allow an accessory building that is larger than 5,000 
square feet, a conditional use permit to allow an accessory dwelling unit and a variance to allow 
the accessory structure to exceed the height of the principle structure on the property located at 
7220 Turner Road (PID No. 28-118-24-14-0006) (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS the requested Conditional Use Permits and Variance meet all requirements, 
standards and specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture lots; 
and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 20, 2019 to 
review the application for a Conditional Use Permit and Variance, following mailed and 
published noticed as required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
Curt Marks for a Conditional Use Permit and Variance per the City’s zoning regulations with the 
following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed conditional use permit and variance request meets all applicable 

conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of 
Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  

 
a) The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure 

conformance with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 
b) The existing accessory structure shall be constructed in accordance with the 

approved site and building plans as shown on EXHIBIT B.  The structure cannot 
be expanded or enlarged without the review and approval of the City.  Any 
expansion will require an amendment to the conditional use permit and possibly a 
variance following all applicable procedures. 

 
c) The accessory structure shall not be permitted as a second principle structure on 

the property. 
 

d) The use of the accessory structure for any commercial use and or events is 
prohibited. 

 
e) The accessory dwelling unit (ADU) will have the following restrictions: 

 
i. The ADU is limited to 1,200 square feet, a maximum of 2 bedrooms and shall 

not be expanded beyond the extents of the area defined on EXHIBIT C.   
 

ii. The use of the ADU is limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants 
or the homesteaded owners of the principal structure.  The total number of 
individuals that reside in both the principal dwelling unit and accessory 
dwelling unit may not exceed the number that is allowed by the building code. 

 
3. The City finds that the requested 4-foot variance to allow the detached accessory 

building to have a maximum height of 28 feet is in keeping with the criteria for 
granting a variance.  The variance will not impact the reasonable use and enjoyment 
of the surrounding properties due to the type and size of the other existing buildings 
on the property and the relationship and distance between the proposed accessory 
structure and surrounding properties.  The City will therefore grant a 4-foot variance 
to allow the detached accessory building to have a maximum height of 28 feet as 
measured in accordance with City standards 
 



 

 

4. The Owner will be required to meet all applicable standards relating to the on-site 
septic system for the proposed detached accessory structure. 
 

5. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review of the conditional use 
permit and variance applications and recording of the resolution.  

 

 

 

This resolution was adopted by the city council of the City of Independence on this 17th day of 
September 2019 by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
 
 
 



mkalt
Text Box
EXHIBIT C





2460 County Road 92 N. Variance Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Variance to Allow an Accessory Structure Which Exceeds the Height 
Limitations of the City’s Zoning Ordinance for the 

 Property Located at 2460 County Road 92 N. 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 

Applicant: Greg Hamman 

Owner: Greg Hamman 

Location: 2460 County Road 92 N. 

 
Request: 
Gregory Hamman (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the property 
identified by (PID No. 16-118-24-33-0002) and located at 2460 CSAH 92 N in Independence, MN: 

 
a. A Variance to allow an accessory structure to exceed the height of the principle structure. 

 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located at 2460 County Road 92 N. which is on the east side of CSAH 92 and south 
of Highway 12.  There is one residential structure on the property and the land is comprise of wetlands and 
upland.   
 

Property Information: 2460 County Road 92 N.  
Zoning: AG - Agriculture  

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: 4.65 acres  
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2460 County Road 92 N. Variance Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 2 

 

2460 CSAH 92  

 
 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant would like to construct a detached accessory structure on the property.  There is currently an 
existing home located on the property.  The City regulates the total square footage permitted for detached 
accessory structures using a formula.  The formula allows a property owner to construct an accessory 
building which does not exceed 2% of the upland square footage of the property.  In this particular case the 
City has determined that the upland portion of the property is 2.71 acres.  Based on this determination, the 
total allowable square footage for a detached accessory structure is 2,361 (2.71 acres -118,048 sf * .02 = 
2,361). 
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 2,000 square foot detached accessory structure which is less than 
the maximum size permitted.  In addition to the limitation on building size, the City regulates the maximum 
height of detached accessory structures.  The maximum height of an accessory structure shall not exceed 
the height of the principle structure. 
 

3 The height of an accessory structure shall not exceed the height of the principle 
structure.  The height of the principle and accessory structure shall be measured 



2460 County Road 92 N. Variance Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 3 

 

in accordance with the definition provided in this ordinance, Section 510.05, 
Subdivision 10. 

 

 
 

The existing home on the property is a rambler with a mean height of 16 feet.  The applicant would like the 
City to permit the detached accessory building to have a mean height of 19 feet.  In order for the applicant 
to construct a building higher than that which is permitted, the City will need to consider a 3-foot variance.  
The applicant is proposing to locate the building to the east of the principle structure.  The elevation of the 
proposed accessory building is approximately 2 feet lower than the elevation of the principle home.  The 
applicant has noted that the proposed detached accessory structure would be located in a manner that 
would limit its visibility in relation to the existing home on the property (see attached photo simulation).   
 

 



2460 County Road 92 N. Variance Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 4 

 

The proposed accessory structure is proposed to meet applicable building setbacks (15 foot side yard, 40 
foot rear yard setback).  The applicant has noted in his narrative that the proposed detached accessory 
structure would have an 8/12 roof pitch versus a lower pitch.  It was noted that the steeper pitch will provide 
a nicer aesthetic appearance.   
 
There are several factors to consider relating to granting a variance.  The City’s ordinance has established 
criteria for consideration in granting a variance.   
 
520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision 1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 
terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 
is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 
the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 
with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in  
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means:  

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code;  
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner;  

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the  
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend and the City Council may 
impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 
proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. The applicant is proposing to use the property in a manner consistent with the Agriculture Zoning 
District.  The City is currently working on revising the ordinance to provide a method for permitting 
detached accessory structures that exceed the height of the principle structure.  
 

b. The effect of the requested variance will be somewhat mitigated as a result of the size of the 
property as well as its relationship to surrounding properties.   

 
c. The character of the surrounding area is agriculture.  The proposed detached accessory building is 

generally in keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 



2460 County Road 92 N. Variance Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 5 

 

 
The City will need to determine if the requested variance meets the requirements for granting a variance.   
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The neighboring property owner to the west of the applicant was present at the public hearing and noted 
that they were in support of the requested variance for an accessory building that is taller than the principle 
structure.   
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the requested application and asked questions of staff and the 
applicant.  Planning Commissioner’s clarified that there was an approximate 2-foot separation in elevation 
levels between the principle structure and proposed accessory structure.  The Planning Commission 
ultimately found that the criteria for approving a variance have been satisfied by the applicant and 
recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommends approval of the requested variance with the following findings and 
conditions: 
 

1. The proposed Variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 
Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been met by the applicant and specially that: 
 

a. The applicant is proposing to use the property in a manner consistent with the Agriculture 
Zoning District.  The City is currently working on revising the ordinance to provide a method for 
permitting detached accessory structures that exceed the height of the principle structure.  

 
b. The character of the surrounding area is agriculture.  The proposed detached accessory building 

is generally in keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 

c. The location of the property in relation to the county road and surrounding properties along with 
the proposed location of the detached accessory structure will aid in mitigating potential impacts 
of a taller structure. 

 
3. The requested variances will allow the proposed detached accessory structure to be constructed in 

accordance with the approved plans only (plans will become an exhibit of the resolution).  The variance 
granted shall be as follows: 

 
a. A 3-foot variance will allow the detached accessory building to have a maximum height of 19 



2460 County Road 92 N. Variance Request – City Council 9.03.2019  
 Page 6 

 

feet as measured in accordance with City standards. 
 

4. The proposed building cannot be used for a commercial business or storage. 
 

5. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested variance. 
 

6. Any future improvements made to this property will need to be in compliance with all applicable 
standards relating to the AG-Agriculture zoning districts.   

 
7. The Applicant shall record the City Council Resolution within six (6) months of the Council approval. 

 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Property Pictures 
2. Building Plans 
3. Site Survey 

 
 









From: Beth
To: Beth Horner
Date: Tuesday, July 9, 2019 3:35:58 PM

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:blhorner2270@msn.com
mailto:BHorner@ci.independence.mn.us










 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-0903-05 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE TO ALLOW AN 
ACCESSORY STRUCTURE THAT IS TALLER THAN THE PRINCIPLE STRUCTURE FOR 

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2460 COUNTY ROAD 92 N 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Gregory Hamman (the “Applicant/Owner”) submitted a request for a 
variance to allow an accessory structure that is taller than the principle structure on the property 
located at 2460 CSAH 92 N (PID No. 16-118-24-33-0002) (the “Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned AG-Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described as shown and depicted on Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 

WHEREAS the requested variance meets all requirements, standards and specifications 
of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture properties; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 20, 2019 to 
review the application for a Variance, following mailed and published noticed as required by 
law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

Gregory Hamman and grants a variance for the property in accordance with the City’s zoning 
regulations with the following findings and conditions: 

1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in 
Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

2. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been met by the applicant and 
specially that: 

 
a. The applicant is proposing to use the property in a manner consistent with the 

Agriculture Zoning District.  The City is currently working on revising the 
ordinance to provide a method for permitting detached accessory structures that 
exceed the height of the principle structure.  

 
b. The character of the surrounding area is agriculture.  The proposed detached 

accessory building is generally in keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 

c. The location of the property in relation to the county road and surrounding 
properties along with the proposed location of the detached accessory structure 
will aid in mitigating potential impacts of a taller structure. 

 
3. The requested variance will allow the proposed detached accessory structure to be 

constructed in accordance with the approved plans only as depicted on Exhibit B, 
attached hereto. 
 

4. The variance granted shall be as follows: 
 
a. A 3-foot variance to permit the detached accessory building to have a maximum 

height of 19 feet as measured in accordance with City standards. 
 

5. The proposed building cannot be used for a commercial business or storage. 
 

6. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
variance. 

 
7. Any future improvements made to this property will need to be in compliance with all 

applicable standards relating to the AG-Agriculture zoning districts.   
 

8. The Applicant shall record the City Council Resolution within six (6) months of the 
Council approval. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

This resolution was adopted by the city council of the City of Independence on this 3rd day of 
September 2019, by a vote of __ ayes and ___ nays.   

       

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 
The west 460.00 feet of the south 474.00 feet of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 
of Section 16, Township 118, Range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota as measured along the 
west and south lines thereof. Containing 5.00 acres. 

Subject to Public Road Easement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 
(Building Plan) 

 
 
 

 




